
 

RHODE ISLAND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 

MEETING OF DIRECTORS 
 

PUBLIC SESSION 
 

APRIL 26, 2010 
 

 The Board of Directors of the Rhode Island Economic Development Corporation 
(the "Corporation") met on Monday, April 26, 2010, in Public Session, at 4:00 p.m., at 
the offices of the Rhode Island Economic Development Corporation, located at 315 Iron 
Horse Way, Suite 101, Providence, Rhode Island, pursuant to notice of the meeting to 
all Directors, and public notice of the meeting, a copy of which is attached hereto, as 
required by the bylaws of the Corporation and applicable Rhode Island law. 
 
 The following Directors were present and participated throughout the meeting as 
indicated:  Governor Donald L. Carcieri, Mr. Alfred Verrecchia, Mr. Karl Wadensten, Ms. 
Cheryl Snead, Mr. George Nee, Mr. Stephen Lane, Dr. David Dooley, Ms. Donna 
Cupelo, Mr. Paul Choquette, Dr. Timothy Babineau and Mr. Daniel Sullivan .  
 
 Directors absent: Mr. Lynn Singleton and Mr. Shivan Subramaniam. 
 
 Also present were: Executive Director Keith Stokes, members of the 
Corporation's staff and Attorney Robert I. Stolzman. 
 
 Governor Carcieri presided over the meeting and Attorney Robert I. Stolzman 
acted as Secretary. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
 Governor Carcieri called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.   
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON MARCH 22, 2010 

AND APRIL 5, 2010 
 
 Upon motion duly made by Mr. Verrecchia and seconded by Ms. Snead, the 
following vote was adopted: 
 

VOTED: To approve the public session minutes of the meetings held on 
March 22, 2010, and April 5, 2010, as submitted to the Board of 
Directors. 

 
 Voting in favor of the foregoing were:  Mr. Verrecchia, Mr. Wadensten, Mr. 
Sullivan, Ms. Snead, Mr. Nee, Mr. Lane, Dr. Dooley, Ms. Cupelo, Mr. Choquette and Dr. 
Babineau.  
 
 Voting against the foregoing were:  None. 



 2 

 
3. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

See Exhibit A for the Executive Director’s report. 
 
Executive Director Stokes reported that the RIEDC responded to the recent 

flooding in Rhode Island by creating a fund of $500,000 for loans for flood relief.  To 
date only three applications have been made, all of which are under review.  The floods 
hit many small businesses which cannot afford to take on more debt.  Mr. Stokes stated 
that the EDC will continue to work with the cities and towns to see what it can do to help 
with this unfortunate situation.   Upon inquiry of Ms. Snead, Mr. Stokes stated that he 
was unaware of any problems getting information together for flood victims. 

 
Continuing his report, Mr. Stokes noted the recent announcement regarding the 

CCRI Commission Report and Recommendations.  He stated that the EDC will continue 
to work with CCRI to strengthen its position as a critical resource for educating workers 
for high-wage jobs in the state’s 21st century knowledge economy. 

 
Mr. Stokes noted that he and Governor Carcieri have continued their “listening 

tour”, meeting with local chambers, businesses and municipal leaders in order to 
determine what their priorities are and how the EDC can assist with their business 
retention and expansion needs.  He stated that the most tangible benefit from these 
meetings has been the communities’ appreciation for a physical presence and the 
opportunities to voice their concerns. 

 
Governor Carcieri noted that the listening tour has been very successful, but that 

it was sidetracked by the flood activity.  Mr. Wadensten liked the idea of a listening tour, 
but stated that it is important that there be follow-up. 

 
Mr. Stokes reported that the EDC has been working with the Senate on a 

regulatory reform package which is nearly complete and will be presented to the Board 
soon. 

 
Mr. Stokes noted that he intends to reach out to the Board members to tour and 

visit the EDC office so that they can get a better idea of the operations of the 
Corporation.  He also noted that he plans to have members of the staff report to the 
Board on what they do, particularly on how the staff must heed certain rules, regulations 
and statutes in its day to day operations. 

 
Mr. Stokes noted that several Board members have inquired about what is 

happening at Quonset, and reported that the EDC has been having talks with Electric 
Boat and its desire to expand at Quonset.  He noted that Electric Boat anticipates 
substantial growth in the next few years, and suggested that the next Board meeting be 
held at Electric Boat, with a tour of Quonset included.  Ms. Cupelo stated that she is in 
favor of the idea of going out to other places for Board meetings.  Mr. Stokes urged the 
Board members to suggest the places they would like to visit, and noted that such visits 
must be ADA accessible. 



 3 

 
Dr. Dooley, noting that he had been out of the country for 10 days, asked about 

the status of DeepWater Wind.  Governor Carcieri reported that the PUC took a very 
narrow view of the governing legislation in its decision to deny the power purchase 
agreement.  After meeting with the Senate President and the Speaker, Governor 
Carcieri stated that all are in favor of moving forward with new legislation, which is being 
re-written this week.  He stated that it is important to move forward and get back on 
track with this project, as it can be a model for the nation.  Governor Carcieri 
commented that the PUC, in its consideration of the legislation, compared oranges to 
apples as far as costs are concerned, and stated that he can make an argument that 
electricity will be cheaper with wind energy in 20 years.  He noted that Europe, including 
the UK, is making great use of wind energy. 

 
Upon inquiry of Mr. Choquette about looking at this from a bigger picture, 

Governor Carcieri stated that the initial approach must be on a small scale, setting 
benchmarks to measure success. 

 
Mr. Verrecchia, referring to the suggestion that Board meetings be held at 

various places, suggested that local businesses come in to speak to the Board.  Mr. 
Stokes agreed that this is a good idea, and suggested that elected officials also be 
invited to meetings.  He stated that the Electric Boat visit in May will be first on the 
agenda. 

 
Governor Carcieri reported that he had attended Brown University’s Warren 

Alpert Medical School “groundbreaking” on Richmond Street in the jewelry district 
earlier in the day.  He noted that it is hoped that this facility will be an anchor for the 
state’s research-based economy, noting that the area already includes other related 
facilities, such as Isis Biopolymer.  Governor Carcieri stated that he is also hopeful that 
the combined URI/RIC nursing school will come to fruition in the same area. 

 
Dr. Babineau stated that the medical school advancements are starting to take 

shape, and that high quality faculty recruits have been touring the area.  He noted that 
this area has great potential. 

 
Mr. Verrecchia commented that he considers a “knowledge economy” to be a 

combination of knowledge and manufacturing.  Mr. Stokes agreed, stating that the idea 
is not to leave manufacturing behind, but to enhance manufacturing with knowledge. 

 
Dr. Dooley agreed with the foregoing statements, but suggested that “innovation 

economy” may be a better description of what is happening.  He stated that many jobs 
are possible due to innovation, but may not necessarily require a specific area of 
knowledge or degree of education.  He explained that, while there will be a handful of 
scientists running new innovation businesses, many other non-knowledge-based 
technical jobs will come out of it. 

 
Ms. Cupelo asked if there is a strategic plan in place for the former I-195 land, to 

which Mr. Stokes reported that the EDC is actively working on this with the City of 



 4 

Providence.  He noted that the City of Providence has an RFP out for rewriting the 
zoning codes for the Knowledge District, including I-195, and that a plan is being 
formulated. 

 
Mr. Verrecchia commented that the jewelry district is becoming an academic 

medical community despite not having a strategic plan in place.  He suggested that a 
strategy be determined for this area’s development.  Governor Carcieri stated that the 
DOT actually owns the I-195 land.  Mr. Stokes noted that there have been a number of 
discussions about how to transfer the land and create a marketing strategy.  Mr. 
Sullivan stated that it is important to give college graduates a reason to stay in Rhode 
Island rather than leaving for other states.  Mr. Stokes reminded the Board that the 
RIEDC, the RIDOT and the City all participated in a preliminary strategy report by CKS 
in 2009. 

 
 Responding to a question of Governor Carcieri, Mr. Stokes reported that the 
America’s Cup committee has met with Team Oracle and that it has determined that 
Fort Adams is the best site to develop a team village.  He stated that an RFP will be 
ready within a couple of weeks and that a number of companies have approached with 
offers to assist.  Mr. Stokes also reported that Team Oracle may be brining the Cup to 
Rhode Island, most likely in July.  He also reported that a newspaper in Valencia 
recently ran an article supporting Newport as a great destination for the races, and that 
other sailing periodicals will be featuring Newport over the next couple of weeks.   
 
 Governor Carcieri noted that logistics for the races are much more involved and 
sophisticated than when they came to Rhode Island years ago.  Mr. Stokes reported 
that he expects at least 4 racing syndicates to participate, and that if it is announced 
that Newport has been selected as the venue by this summer, a number of teams will 
start coming to Rhode Island in the fall. 
 
 Mr. Stokes noted that 40,000 “transient guest facilities” will be needed in addition 
to media and retail centers.  He stated that the three leading contenders are San 
Francisco, San Diego and Newport, and that the criteria will be made known in a couple 
of weeks. 
 
4. FOR APPROVAL OF IMMEDIATE PRIORITIES IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
 
 Governor Carcieri stated that a lot of work went into developing an immediate 
priorities implementation plan before the current Board was created.  In addition, the 
Board held two planning retreats in March and April to arrive at the plan that is up for 
approval this date.   
 
 Referring to the draft plan (See Exhibit B) in the Board packages, Mr. Stokes led 
a discussion of each step in the plan.  He noted that item B under the Action Plan (III) 
will require an economist and/or an economic development professional to lead a 
division of economic research and policy.  Item C in the Action Plan is to identify and 
advocate a stable, competitive tax structure. 
 



 5 

 Regarding Item D, Improving Access to Capital, Mr. Stokes noted that IRBA 
funding should be restored to $60 to $80 million, and that a new small business 
program should be developed.  He stated that a request for $5 million for a small 
business loan fund will be submitted to the legislature. 
 
 Mr. Stokes explained that an announcement will be coming soon regarding the 
establishment of an office of regulatory reform within the EDC.   He also noted that the 
plan includes development of a well-coordinated comprehensive strategy and 
communications plan, which will include working with the RI Commodores and the 
Providence Chamber of Commerce. 
 
 Mr. Choquette asked about other Chambers of Commerce, to which Mr. Stokes 
replied that the EDC has already reached out to other Chambers, asking them to 
identify their respective areas of focus.  Mr. Stokes described the plan as a starting 
point. 
 
 Mr. Choquette asked about how to measure how the plan is doing, and Mr. 
Stokes reported that a “dashboard” is being put together to measure successes and 
failures. 
 
 Mr. Nee suggested that item 4 under III E be amended to include the defense 
industry.  Mr. Stokes stated that this will be added and that the plan is still being refined. 
 
 Upon inquiry of Ms. Snead, Mr. Stokes stated that focus groups will be used for 
most, if not all 7 steps in the plan. 
 
 Mr. Verrechia queried how this plan will fit into the Governor’s budget process, 
and stated that he was concerned about the 60 day time frame.  Mr. Stokes responded 
that, once approved, the current budget will be used, but that the 2010/2011 budget is 
already being put together.  He stated that the plan will be implemented in a several 
year approach. 
 
 Mr. Verrechia stated that it is important to work with Governor Carcieri to know if 
the money needed for some of the plan is going to be available, to which Governor 
Carcieri responded that no new money will be available.  Mr. Verrechia noted that, with 
this being the case, in order for an economist to be hired, something else would have to 
be cut.  Governor Carcieri stated that it should be assumed that state funding will 
remain constant and there will be no changes.  He suggested that the plan be re-
prioritized, to which Mr. Stokes responded that all items in the plan are priorities.  He 
stated that the plan will be re-aligned and he will report back to the Board. 
 
 Mr. Verrechia suggested that some of the work an economist would be doing is 
already being done in the state government and that a study should be done to consider 
where consolidation from other state departments might work. 
 
 Mr. Stokes stated that this draft at least gives the EDC a starting point.  Upon 
inquiry of Mr. Sullivan, Mr. Stokes stated that he would ask the Board for help in 



 6 

developing search committees to find the appropriate personnel to run each step in the 
plan. 
 
 Ms. Snead suggested, and all agreed, that a copy of the Plan be included with 
the Board packages at each meeting so that the Board can keep track of what progress 
is being made. 
 
 Ms. Cupelo stated that a dashboard should be set up with real dates set for 
measuring progress, including a starting point.  She suggested that Eric Rosengren, an 
economist for the New England FED, be consulted for guidance.  She stated that Dr. 
Rosengren has already been consulting with Massachusetts’ economic development 
team.  Ms. Cupelo noted that the RIEDC has a credibility issue and needs to show the 
public what it is doing. 
 
 Ms. Snead suggested that the EDC use what is available for assistance, 
including federal assistance, higher education institutions and the like.  Dr. Dooley 
stated that URI has people who can help. 
 
 Governor Carcieri asked if the Board would support and approve the plan.  Upon 
motion duly made by Mr. Choquette and seconded by Dr. Babineau, the following vote 
was adopted: 
 
 VOTED:  See text of vote ate Exhibit C, as amended. 
 

Voting in favor of the foregoing were:  Mr. Verrecchia, Mr. Wadensten, Mr. 
Sullivan, Ms. Snead, Mr. Nee, Mr. Lane, Dr. Dooley, Ms. Cupelo, Mr. Choquette and Dr. 
Babineau.  
 
 Voting against the foregoing were:  None. 
 
 Prior to adjournment, Mr. Wadensten distributed a memo he received from 
Michael Mulholland, a URI student, regarding lean government and collaboration 
between URI and state agencies (See Exhibit D).   Mr. Wadensten stated that a wealth 
of resources exists within the student population of URI. 
 
 Mr. Wadensten also distributed a flyer asking for help at a rally to be held at the 
State House on Thursday, April 29, regarding the legislature’s recent announcement 
that it was going to cut $1 million from the Governor’s Workforce Development Grant 
(See Exhibit E).  He stated that this would be a peaceable rally and that he was asking 
for the Board’s support in making calls to ask people to attend the rally.  He noted that 
Mr. Nee planned to attend on behalf of the labor unions.  Mr. Nee stated that a good 
workforce development program is critical to economic development in the state.  Ms. 
Snead agreed that training is most important for businesses to be successful.   
 
 There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was 
adjourned at 5:35 p.m., upon motion made by Mr. Nee and seconded by Ms. Cupelo. 
 



 7 

 
        __________________________ 
        Robert I. Stolzman, Secretary  
533807_1.doc 


